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TO THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE SOUTHERN 

DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA AND TO PLAINTIFFS AND THEIR ATTORNEYS 

OF RECORD: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendants ATC Healthcare, Inc., ATC 

Healthcare Services, LLC (erroneously sued as ATC Healthcare Services, Inc., and ATC 

Healthcare Staffing), and ATC West Staffing, Inc., hereby remove the above-referenced 

action from the California Superior Court, County of San Diego, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 

sections 1441 and 1446, based on federal question jurisdiction (28 U.S.C. § 1331). The 

removal is proper for the following reasons: 

I. BACKGROUND  

1. On December 27, 2018, an action was commenced in the Superior Court of 

the State of California, County of San Diego, entitled TONI TORRACA-RIANO and 

MICHAEL OLSHANSKY, individually, on behalf of themselves and others similarly 

situated, Plaintiffs vs. ATC HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC., a Georgia corporation; 

ATC HEALTHCARE, INC, a Delaware corporation; ATC HEALTHCARE SERVICES, 

LLC, a Georgia limited liability company; ATC HEALTHCARE STAFFING, an unknown 

entity; ATC WEST STAFFING, INC., a California corporation; and DOES 1 through 50 

inclusive, Defendants. 

2. The Complaint asserts claims for: (1) "Violations of Fair Credit Reporting 

Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681b(b)(2)(A) § 1681o(a) (Obtaining Consumer Reports Without 

Proper Disclosure)"; (2) "Violations of Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. 

§§ 1681b(b)(2)(A) § 1681o(a) (Obtaining Consumer Reports Without Proper 

Authorization)"; (3) "Violations of the California Investigative Consumer Reporting 

Agencies Act (ICRAA) (Civ. Code., § 1786, et seq.)"; (4) "Failure to Make Payments 

Within the Required Time"; (5) "Violations of Labor Code § 226"; (6) "Remedies Under 

Private Attorney General Act (PAGA California Labor Code §§ 2698, 2699, et seq.)"; 

and (7) "Unfair Business Practices in Violation of Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17000, et 

seq. and §§ 17200, et seq." 

1 
DEFENDANTS' NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF CIVIL ACTION TO THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

54263384v.1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Case 3:19-cv-00295-L-BLM   Document 1   Filed 02/08/19   PageID.2   Page 2 of 150



3. On January 11, 2019, ATC Healthcare Services, LLC's registered agent for 

service of process received the Complaint. A true and correct copy of the document 

received is attached as Exhibit A. 

4. On February 1, 2019, Plaintiffs purported to serve the Summons and 

Complaint on Defendant ATC West Staffing, Inc. (a dissolved corporation), by leaving a 

copy of the documents outside the door of ATC West Staffing, Inc.'s former business 

address. A true and correct copy of the documents delivered is attached as Exhibit B. 

5. On February 4, 2019, ATC Healthcare Services, LLC's registered agent for 

service of process received a Notice of Case Assignment and Case Management 

Conference, the Summons, and an ADR Packet, along with another copy of the 

Complaint. A true and correct copy of the documents received is attached as Exhibit C. 

6. On February 7, 2019, Defendants filed their Answer in San Diego County 

Superior Court. A true and correct copy of the Answer filed is attached as Exhibit D. 

7. Defendants have not filed or received any other pleadings or papers, other 

than the pleadings described as Exhibits A through D, in this action prior to this Notice of 

Removal. (Declaration of Mason R. Winters ("Winters Decl.") ¶ 2.) 

II. TIMELINESS OF REMOVAL 

8. This Notice of Removal is timely because it is being filed within thirty (30) 

days of ATC Healthcare Services, Inc.'s receipt of the Complaint on January 11, 2019. 

28 U.S.C. 1446(b)(2)(B) ("Each defendant shall have 30 days after receipt by or service 

on that defendant of the initial pleading or summons . . . to file the notice of removal."). 

9. Thus, this Notice of Removal is filed within thirty days of service of a copy 

of the initial pleading setting forth the claim for relief upon which this action is based and 

is timely pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 1446(b). 

III. NO JOINDER REQUIRED  

10. All named Defendants have consented to removal. Unnamed, or doe 

defendants, are not required to join in removal. Emrich v. Touche Ross & Co., 846 F.2d 

1190 n.1 (9th Cir. 1988) (doe defendants need not join in removal). 
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IV. FEDERAL QUESTION JURISDICTION 

11. This action is proper for removal to this Court on the ground that it is a civil 

action of which this Court has original jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. section 1331. 

12. Any civil action commenced in state court is removable if it might have been 

originally brought in federal court. See 28 U.S.C. § 1441; Exxon Mobil Corp. v. 

Allapattach Servs., Inc., 545 U.S. 546, 563-64 (2005) ("district court has original 

jurisdiction of a civil action for purposes of section 1441(a) as long as it has original 

jurisdiction over a subset of claims constituting the action"). 

13. The action may be removed to this Court by Defendants under 28 U.S.C. 

section 1441(a) because it arises under a federal statute, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 

U.S.C. §§ 1681b(b)(2)(A) and 1681bo(a) ("FCRA") (See Compl. pgs. 15-20.) 

14. Specifically, on the face of the Complaint, Plaintiff's First Cause of Action 

is one for "Violations of Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681b(b)(2)(A) 

§ 1681o(a) (Obtaining Consumer Reports Without Proper Disclosure)." Plaintiff's 

Second Cause of Action is also one for "Violations of Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 

U.S.C. §§ 1681b(b)(2)(A) § 1681o(a) (Obtaining Consumer Reports Without Proper 

Authorization)." Thus, Plaintiff has expressly relied on a federal statute, the FCRA. 

15. Plaintiffs' express reliance on the FCRA in their First and Second Causes of 

Action, and their numerous allegations throughout their Complaint underlying their 

FCRA claims, is sufficient to establish federal question jurisdiction. Indeed, Plaintiffs 

are the "master[s] of [their own] complaint," and could have "avoid[ed] federal 

jurisdiction by exclusive reliance on state law." Caterpillar Inc. v. Williams, 482 U.S. 

386, 392 (1987). Plaintiffs did not do so. Consequently, the action is removable based 

on federal question jurisdiction. See Vaden v. Discover Bank, 556 U.S 49, 59-60 (2009) 

(a suit arises under federal law when "the plaintiff's statement of his own cause of action 

shows that it is based upon [federal law]"); Abada v. Charles Schwab & Co., 300 F.3d 

1112, 1118 (9th Cir. 2002) ("The presence or absence of federal-question jurisdiction is 

governed by the 'well-pleaded complaint rule,' which provides that federal jurisdiction 
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exists only when a federal question is presented on the face of the plaintiff's well-pleaded 

complaint.") (quoting Caterpillar, 482 U.S. at 392-93). 

16. Accordingly, Plaintiffs' reliance on the FCRA on the face of their 

Complaint, and their numerous allegations seeking to support claims under the FCRA, 

are sufficient to establish that they have pled federal causes of action; therefore, removal 

to this Court based on federal question jurisdiction is proper. 

V. PENDENT JURISDICTION OVER STATE CLAIMS  

17. The Court has pendent jurisdiction over Plaintiff's other state law claims 

because they arise from a nucleus of operative facts common to the state law claims and 

the FCRA claims. For a District Court to have pendent jurisdiction over state law claims 

"Nile state and federal claims must derive from a common nucleus of operative facts." 

United Mine Workers v. Gibbs, 383 U.S. 715, 725 (1966). Once a federal court acquires 

removal jurisdiction over a case, it also acquires jurisdiction over pendent state law 

claims. See, e.g., Bright v. Bechtel Petroleum, Inc., 780 F.2d 766, 771 (9th Cir. 1986) 

("[t]o conserve judicial resources, it was appropriate for the district court to decide" the 

state law claims). 

18. Here, the Court has pendent jurisdiction over Plaintiff's state law claims 

because they arise out of the same set of facts as those which form the basis of her FCRA 

claims. 

19. Plaintiffs' Third Cause of Action for "Violations of the California 

Investigative Consumer Reporting Agencies Act" ("ICRAA") is based on the same 

allegations as her First and Second Causes of Action under the federal FCRA. That is, 

both the FCRA and ICRAA claims allege that: (a) Plaintiffs signed an authorization form 

allowing ATC Healthcare Staffing to procure consumer reports regarding them (compare 

Ex. A, Compl. Irf 96, 97 with Compl. In 123, 125); and (b) reliance on those forms was 

purportedly unlawful because they included "a liability release and multiple state law 

admonitions" (compare Compl. IN 99, 100 with Compl. TT 126, 127). Indeed, Plaintiffs' 

FCRA and ICRAA claims both center on the Complaint's identical allegations that 
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Defendants provided "a facially invalid Notification and Authorization Form that was in 

direct violation of the clear and unambiguous requirements set forth in 15 U.S.C. 

§ 1681b(b)(2)(A)" (i.e., the FCRA) and "in § 1786.16" (the ICRAA). (See Ex. A, 

Compl. Irlf 103, 129.) In short, the allegations on which Plaintiffs' FCRA and ICRAA are 

based are nearly identical. 

20. Plaintiff's Fourth, Fifth, and Sixth Causes of Action for "Failure to Make 

Payments Within the Required Time," "Violations of Labor Code § 226," and "Remedies 

Under Private Attorney General Act" also share a common nucleus of operative facts 

with Plaintiffs' FCRA claims. First, both sets of claims arise from Plaintiffs' 

employment relationship with Defendants. See Prakash v. Am. Univ., 727 F.2d 1174, 

1183 (D.C. Cir. 1984) (finding that district court had jurisdiction over employee's federal 

FLSA claims and pendant jurisdiction over state law claims for breach of contract, 

interference with contract, conversion, deceit, and defamation; "[t]he federal and 

nonfederal claims [plaintiff] advances 'derive from a common nucleus of operative 

facts'—[the plaintiff's] contract dispute with the university...."). Second, both sets of 

claims rely on allegations that the wrong entity name was printed on Plaintiffs' 

employment documents. (Compare Ex. A, Compl. ¶¶ 96, 97 with Compl. TT 47, 154.) 

Third, both sets of claims rely on events that took place around the same time. For 

example, Plaintiff Olshansky signed the allegedly offending background check 

authorization form on November 18, 2018 (Compl. ¶ 31; FCRA allegation); and the 

allegedly offending paycheck stub was issued to Plaintiff Olshansky just 11 days later on 

November 29, 2018 (Compl. ¶ 43; wage allegation). The timeframe for the putative 

classes also overlaps for four of the last five years. (Compl. at 12:12-24: FCRA class 

from 12-27-2013 to the present; wage claims class from 12-27-2014 to the present.) 

Fourth, both sets of claims together underlie Plaintiffs' Seventh Cause of Action for 

Unfair Business Practices, discussed below. Thus, Plaintiffs' wage claims share a 

common nucleus of operative facts with their FCRA claims. 
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21. Plaintiffs' Seventh Cause of Action for "Unfair Business Practices" also 

shares a common nucleus of operative facts with Plaintiffs' FCRA claims. The 

Complaint alleges that "Defendants committed the unfair business practices . . . by 

violating the laws alleged to have been violated in this Complaint and which allegations 

are incorporated herein by reference." (See Ex. A, Compl. ¶ 177.) The Complaint 

concludes that "Defendants' conduct, as alleged above, constitutes unlawful, unfair, and 

fraudulent activity prohibited by Business and Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq." (Id. 

¶ 178.) In other words, Plaintiffs' Seventh Cause of Action for Unfair Business Practices 

is premised on the FCRA claims. 

22. Therefore, the District Court has pendent jurisdiction over Plaintiff's 

remaining causes of action along with her FCRA claims. 

VI. VENUE  

23. Removal to this Court is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. sections 1391(b) and 

1441(a) because the state court action was filed in San Diego County. 

VII. NOTICE OF REMOVAL 

24. Notice of this removal will promptly be served on Plaintiff and the Clerk of 

the Superior Court of the State of California in and for the County of San Diego. 

DATED: February 8, 2019 Respectfully submitted, 

SEYFARTH SHAW LLP 

By:  /s/ Mason R. Winters  
Laura Wilson Shelby 
Mason R. Winters 
Attorneys for Defendants 
ATC Healthcare, Inc., ATC Healthcare 
Services, LLC (erroneously sued as ATC 
Healthcare Services, Inc., and ATC 
Healthcare Staffing), and ATC West 
Staffing, Inc. 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

TONI TORRACA-RIANO and MICHAEL 
OLSHANSKY, individually, on behalf of 
themselves and others similarly situated, 
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v. 

ATC HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC., a 
Georgia corporation; ATC 
HEALTHCARE, INC., a Delaware 
corporation; ATC HEALTHCARE 
SERVICES, LLC, a Georgia limited 
liability company; ATC HEALTHCARE 
STAFFING, an unknown entity; ATC 
WEST STAFFING, INC., a California 
corporation; and DOES 1 through 50 
inclusive, 

Defendants. 
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DECLARATION OF MASON R. WINTERS  

I, Mason R. Winters, hereby declare: 

1. I am an attorney admitted to practice in the State of California, and I am an 

attorney in the law firm of Seyfarth Shaw LLP. I am one of the lawyers responsible for 

representing ATC Healthcare, Inc., ATC Healthcare Services, LLC (erroneously sued as 

ATC Healthcare Services, Inc., and ATC Healthcare Staffing), and ATC West Staffing, 

Inc., ("Defendants") in the above-captioned lawsuit filed on behalf of Plaintiffs Toni 

Torraca-Riano and Michael Olshansky ("Plaintiffs"). All of the pleadings and 

correspondence in this lawsuit are maintained in our office in the ordinary course of 

business under my direction and control. I have reviewed the pleadings and 

correspondence in preparing this declaration. 

2. Exhibits A through D to the concurrently filed Notice of Removal constitute 

all of the pleadings in the Superior Court's record that have been served on Defendants or 

filed by Defendants. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States and the laws 

of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed this 8th day of February 2019, at Los Angeles, California. 

Mason R. Winters 
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Thomas D. Rutledge (SBN 200497) 
Attomey .. at-Law 
500 West Harbor Drive, Suite 1113 
San Diego, California 92101 
Telephone: (619) 886-7224 
Facsimile: (619) 259-5455 

Co-Counsel listed on next page. 

ELECTRONICALLY' FILED 
Superior Court af California, 

County af' San Cliega 

1212112018 at 1D:3i1':1Ja PM 
Clerlt. af the Superimr Court 

By \Snessa Bahena,DepLil:y Clerk 

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO-CENTRAL DIVISION 

) 
TONI TORRACA-RIANO and ) Case No.: 37.201s.00065377-CU-os.crL 
MICHAEL OLSHANSKY, ) 

INDIVIDUAL AND CLASS ACTION individually, on behalf of themselves ) 
and others similarly situated, ) COMPLAINT FOR: 

) 1. Violations of Fair Credit Reporting 
Plaintiffs ) Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681b(b)(2)(A) § 

vs. ) 1681o(a) (Obtaining Consumer 

) Reports Without Proper Disclosure) 

ATC HEALTHCARE SERVICES, ) 
2. Violations. of Fair Credit Reporting 

Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681b(b)(2)(A) § 
INC., a Georgia corporation; ATC ) 1681o(a) (Obtaining Consumer 
HEAL TH CARE, INC., a Delaware ) Reports Without Proper 
corporation; ATC HEALTHCARE ) Authorization); 

SERVICES, LLC, a Georgia limited ) 3. Violations of the California 

liability company; ATC ) Investigative Consumer Reporting 

HEALTHCARE STAFFING, an ) 
Agencies Act (ICRAA) (Civ. Code, § 
1786, et seq.); 

unknown entity; ATC WEST ) 4. Failure to Make Payments Within 
STAFFING, INC., a California ) the Required Time; 
corporation; and DOES 1 through 50 ) 5. Violations of Labor Code§ 226; 

inclusive ) 6. Remedies Under Private Attorney 

) General Act (PAGA California 

Defendants. ) 
Labor Code§§ 2698, 2699, et seq.); 
and 

) 7. Unfair Business Practices in 
) Violation of Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code 
) §§ 17000, et seq. ~md §§ 17200, et seq. 

) DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 
) 

COMPLAINT-Torraca-Riano, et al. v. ATC Healthcare Services, Inc., et al. 

EXHIBIT A 
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1 Greenstone Law APC 
Mark S. Greenstone (SBN 199606) 

2 1925 Century Park East, Suite 2100 
3 Los Angeles, California 90067 

Telephone: (310) 201-9156. 
4 Facsimile: (310) 201-9160 

5 
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Glancy Prongay & Murray LLP 
Marc L. Godino (SBN 182689) 
Danielle L. Manning (SBN 313272) 
1925 Century Park East, Suite 2100 
Los Angeles, California 90067 
Telephone: (310) 201-9150 
Facsimile: (310) 201-9160 

Attorneys for Plaintiffs 

Plaintiffs TONI TORRACA-RIANO and MICHAEL OLSHANSKY, on behalf 

of themselves and acting for the interest of other current and former employees 

("Represented Employees"), and all other similarly situated individuals (cumulatively 

"Plaintiffs"), allege the following: 

NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. Plaintiffs bring this nationwide class action on behalf of all individuals 

who applied for employment with Defendants and who executed a release and 

authorization form permitting Defendants to procure a consumer report .and/or 

investigative consumer report on them as part of their employment or application for 

employment with Defendants. 

2. Specifically, Plaintiffs complain that Defendants have a uniform policy 

or practice of obtaining an applicant's consumer report and have violated the Fair 

Credit Reporting Act (the ''FCRA") through use of a legally invalid authorization 
I 

form that: (1) fails to provide a clear and conspicuous disclosure; and (2) fails to 

provide a disclosure that appears in a document that consists sole.Iy of the disclosure. 

3. Pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure§ 382 and Labor Code Private 

- 1 -
COMPLAINT- Torraca-Riano, et al. v. ATC Healthcare Services, Inc., et al. 
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Attorney General Act ("PAGA"),§§ 2698, 2699 of the California Labor Code, 

Plaintiffs also bring a class and representative action against Defendants for wage and 

hour abuses in violation of the California Labor Code and the Industrial Welfare 

Commission Wage Orders (the "IWC Wage Orders"), all of which contribute to 

Defendants' deliberate unfair competition. 

4. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO, on behalf of 

themselves and all Class Members, seek damages, penalties, restitution, injunctive and 

other equitable relief, reasonable attorneys' fees, and costs. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

5. Pursuant to Article VI,§ 10 of the California Constitution, subject matter 

jurisdictio_n over Plaintiffs' wage and hour claims is proper in the.· Superior Court of 

California, County of San Diego, State of California because Plaintiffs allege claims 

arising under California law. 

6. . Jurisdiction over Plaintiffs FCRA claim is proper under 15 U.S.C. § 

1681p which provides that "[a]n action to enforce any liability cr~ated under this 

subchapter may be brought in any appropriate United States district court, without 

regard to the amount in controversy, or in any other court of competent 

jurisdiction ... " 

7. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants because Defendants 

conduct business in this State, have systematic and continuous ties with this state, and 

have agents and representatives that can be found in this state. 

8. Pursuant to§ 395 of the California Code of Civil Procedure, venue is 

proper in the Superior Court of California for the County of San Diego because 

Defendants' corporate records filed with the California Secretary of State indicate 

they maintain a principle business office at 9040 Friars Road, Suite 335, San Diego, 

California 92108. 

THE PARTIES 

9. Plaintiff TONI TORRACA-RIANO is an individual currently residing in 

-2-
COMPLAINT-Torraca-Riano, et al. v. ATC Healthcare Services, :rite., et al. 
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I California. 

2 10. Plaintiff MICHAEL OLSHANSKY is an individual residing outside the 
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state of California. During his employment with Defendants from on or about 

November 2, 2018 to November 28, 2018, however, PlaintiffOLSHANSKY resided 

in California. 

11. Defendant ATC HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC. is a Georgia 

Corporation doing business in California. 

12. Defendant ATC HEALTHCARE, INC. is a Delaware Corporation doing 

business in California. 

13. Defendant ATC HEALTHCARE SERVICES, LLC is a Georgia limited 

liability company doing business in California. 

14. Defendant ATC HEALTHCARE STAFFING is an unknown entity 

doing business in California. 

15. Defendant ATC WEST STAFFING, INC. is a California Corporation, 

but according to the California Secretary of State Website, it is "dissolved." 

16. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate or 

otherwise of the Defendants named herein as DOES 1through50, are unknown to 

Plaintiffs at this time. Plaintiffs therefore sue said Defendants by such fictitious names 

pursuant to § 4 74 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. Plaintiffs will seek leave 

to amend this Complaint to allege the true names and capacities of DOES I.through 50 

when Plaintiffs ascertain their names. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and based 

thereon allege, that each of the DOE Defendants is in some manner liable to Plaintiffs 

for the events and actions alleged herein. 

17. Unless otherwise specified by name, the named Defendants and DOES 1 

through 50 will be collectively referred to as ''DEFENDANT EMPLOYER" and/or 

"Defendants." 

18. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and based thereon allege, that each 

Defendant was acting as an agent, joint venturer, an integrated enterprise arid/or alter 

- 3 -. 
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ego for each of the other Defendants and each were co-conspirators with respect to the 

acts and the wrongful conduct alleged herein so that each is responsible for the acts of 

the other pursuant to the conspiracy and in proximate connection with the other 

Defendant(s). 

19. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and based thereon allege, that each 

Defendant was acting partly within and partly without the scope and course of their 

employment, and was acting with the knowledge, permission, consent, and ratification 

of every other Defendant. 

20. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and based thereon allege that each of 

the Defendants was an agent, managing general partner, managing member, owner, co­

owner, partner, employee, and/or representative of each of the Defendants and was at 

all times material hereto, acting within the purpose and scope of such agency, 

employment, contract and/or representation, and that each of them is jointly and 

severally liable to Plaintiff. 

21. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and based thereon allege that each of 

the Defendants is liable to Plaintiff under legal theories and doctrines including but not 

limited to (1) joint employer; (2) integrated enterprise; (3) agency; and/or (4) alter ego, 

based in part, on the facts set forth below. 

22. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and based thereon allege, that each of 

the named Defendants are part of an integrated enterprise and have acted or currently 

act as the employer and/or joint employer of the Plaintiffs/Class Members making each 

of them liable for the wage and hour violations alleged herein. 

STATUTORY BACKGROUND OF THE FCRA 

23. Enacted in 1970, the FCRA's passage was driven in part by two related 

concerns: first, that consumer reports were playing a central role in people's lives at 

crucial moments, such as when they applied for a job or credit, and when they applied 

for housing; second, despite their importance, consumer reports were unregulated and 

28 had widespread errors and inaccuracies. 
-4-
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1 24. While recognizing that consumer reports play an important role in the 

2 economy, Congress wanted consumer reports to be "fair and equitable to the 

3 consumer" and to ensure their "confidentiality, accuracy, relevanc_y, and proper 

4 utilization." 15 U.S.C. § 1681. 

5 25. Congress was particularly concerned about the use of consumer reports by 

6 employers. Accordingly, Congress required employers to make a clear and 

7 conspicuous written disclosure to employees and job applicants, in a document that 

8 consists solely of the disclosure, that a consumer report may be procured for 

9 employment purposes. 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2). This is commonly referred to as the 

10 "stand-alone disclosure" requirement. Congress further required that employers obtain 

1 I · written authorization prior to procurement of a consumer report for employment 

12 purposes. Id . 

13 

14 
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17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

26. The FCRA's stand-alone disclosure requirement is one of many elements 

of the FCRA that combine to ensure that consumers know when consumer reports may 

be generated about them, that they know their rights, and that they have the 

opportunity to dispute errors in their reports. See 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(3)(A) (pre­

adverse employment action notice requirement);§ 1681b(4)(B) (notification of 

national security investigation);§ 1681 c(h) (notification of address discrepancy);§ 

168ld(a) (disclosure of investigative report);§ 1681g (full file disclosure to 

consumers);§ 1681k(a)(l) (disclosure regarding the use of public record information);§ 

1681h (form and conditions of disclosure); § 1681m(a) (post-adverse employment 

action notice requirement). 

2 7. Although the disclosure and the authorization may be combined in· a 

single document, the FTC has warned that the form should not include any extraneous 

information or be part of another document. For example, in response to an inquiry as 

to whether the disclosure may be set forth within an application for employment or 

whether it must be included in a separate document, the FTC .stated: 

- 5 -
COMPLAINT-Torraca-Riano, et al. v. ATC Healthcare Services, Inc., et al. 

EXHIBIT A 
- 13 -

Case 3:19-cv-00295-L-BLM   Document 1-2   Filed 02/08/19   PageID.158   Page 6 of 38



.., 
·- .... 'V.,., 
!l2~~ 

!'..;r·~ S! ~ :!: 
~ .!3 .r .I! :q 

> e" 
~¥;§!!l§'§' 
~~· .... a~~ 
:a~~ 0 a; iS 
ii!!:i::.!f~] 
~ ~~i~ 

~ 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

The disclosure may not be part of an employment application 
because the language [of 15 U.S.C. § 168lb(b)(2)(A)] is intended to 
ensure that it appears conspicuously in a document not encumbered 
by any other information. The reason for requiring that the 
disclosure be in a stand-alone document is to prevent consumers 
from being distracted by other information side-by-side within the 
disclosure. 

28. The plain language of the statute also clearly indicates that the inclusion 

of a waiver in a disclosure form violates the disclosure and authorization requirements 

of the FCRA, because such a form would not consist "solely" of the disclosure. In fact, 
l 

the FTC expressly has warned that the FCRA notice may not include extraneous 

information such as a waiver. In a 1998 opinion letter, the FTC stated: 

[W]e note that your draft disclosure includes a waiver by the 
consumer of his or her rights under the FCRA. The inclusion of such 
a waiver in a disclosure form will violate Section 604(b)(2)(A) of the 
FCRA, which requires that a disclosure consist 'solely' of the 
disclosure that a consumer report may be obtained for employment 
purpo.ses. 

29. Consistent with the FTC's construction of the FCRA; courts have 

repeatedly held that extraneous information renders a purported FCRA disclosure non­

compliant. See, e.g., Woods v. CaremarkPHC, LLC, No. 4:15-cv-00535, 2015 WL 

6742124, *2 (W.D. Mo. Nov. 2, 2015) (denying motion to dismiss FCRA complaint 

where plaintiff alleged that purported disclosure contained an overbroad authorization 

for third parties to provide information to defendant and its consumer reporting agency, 

and state specific notices that did not apply to plaintiff); Jones v. Halstead Mgmt. Co., 

LLC, No. 14-cv-3125, 2015 WL 366244, *5 (S.D.N.Y. Jan 27, 2015) (denying motion 

to dismiss FCRA complaint where plaintiff alleged that purported. disclosure form 

included timeframes during which applicant must challenge accuracy of any report, an 

acknowledgement that employment decisions are based on non-discriminatory reasons, 

the contact information for the consumer reporting agency and state specific notices 

that "stretched what should be a simple disclosure form into two full pages of eye-

28 straining typeface writing."). 
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30. As discussed below, Defendant routinely violates the FCRA by failing to 

provide the required stand-alone disclosure to employees and job applicants. 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS REGARDING UNLAWFUL 

PROCUREMENT OF CONSUMER REPORT CLAIMS 

31. On or about November 18, 2018, as part of Plaintiffs' application for 

employment, DEFENDANT EMPLOYER required Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and 

TORRACA-RIANO to sign a document titled "Notification and Authorization to 

Conduct Employment Background Investigation." A true and correct redacted copy of 

Plaintiff OLSHANSKY'S authorization is attached hereto and marked as Exhibit 1. 

32. This form is at the· heart of one key part of this dispute. 

33. The abovementioned form purportedly authorizes "ATC Healthcare 

Staffing" to conduct a background investigation concerning Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY 

and TORRACA-RIANO and the putative Class. 

34. Plaintiffs maintain this form is illegal because, in pa1:'f:, it includes a 

release and hold harmless clause that provides, "I release employers and persons 

named in my application from all liability for any damages on account of his/her 

furnishing said information." See Ex. 1. 

35. Plaintiffs maintain this form is also illegal because it misstates the name 

of Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY'S and TORRACA-RIANO'S employer as being "ATC 

Healthcare Staffing," when according to their wage and earning statements, the only 

legal entity identified as being Plaintiffs' employer was "ATC Healthcare Services, 

22 Inc." See Ex. 1. · 

23 36. To the extent "ATC Healthcare Staffing" (if it exists) is the entity that 

24 procured consumer reports on Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO and 

25 Class Members, this form also fails to provide any disclosure or to. obtain any 

26 authorization at all. 

27 37. Plaintiffs maintain this form is also illegal.because it includes other 

28 extraneous information in addition to a release, including but not limited to a number 
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1 of purported unrelated state law admonitions. See Ex. 1. 

2 38. Plaintiffs maintain this form is also illegal to the extent that it is overly 

3 broad and purports to authorize the procurement of any information concerning the. 

4 applicant whether otherwise lawful or appropriate. See Ex. 1. 

5 · 39. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and therefore all~ge that pursuant to 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

the forms that Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RlANO signed on or about 

Noyember 18, 2018, DEFENDANT EMPLOYER obtained consumer reports on 

Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO. 

40. On information and belief, DEFENDANT EMPLOYER had a practice 

and policy of procuring consumer reports on all Class Members based upon this or 

substantially similar forms during the class period. 
. . 

41. Based on the foregoing, Plaintiffs claim Defendants violated both state 

and federal law. 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS REGARDING 

LABOR CODE VIOLATIONS 

Labor Code § 226 Violations 

42. From at least four years before the filing.ofthis action and continuing to 

the present, and pursuant to company policy and/or practice and/or direction, 

Defendants issued inaccurate wage and earning statements to Plaintiffs. 

43. On or about November 29, 2018, Defendants issued Plaintiff 

OLSHANKSY a paystub. 

· 44. This paystub did not accurately,state Plaintiff OLSHANKSY'S gross 

wages earned or the total hours worked by the employee. 

45. The November 29, 2018 paystub stated PlaintiffOLSHANKSY earned 

$1,810.21 in gross wages, but Plaintiff actually earned $2,194.59. 

46. Additionally, the November 29, 2018 statement did not accotint for. 

PlaintiffOLSHANKSY'S 0.75 hours of overtime and two hours of double time. 

47. Further, if indeed "ATC Healthcare Staffing" was P~aintiffs' employer, 

- 8. 
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Defendant failed to identify such entity as being Plaintiffs' employer, as required 

under Labor Code§ 226(a)(8). 

48. PlaintiffTORRACA-RlANO similarly alleges thatherpaystubs were 

inaccurate. 

49. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and therefore allege that Defendants 

issued similarly inaccurate paystubs to similarly situated employ~es. 

50. Based on the foregoing, Plaintiffs seeks the remedies set forth in this 

Complaint. 

Waiting Time Penalties 

51. Pursuant to Defendants' policies, Defendants failed to pay all wages to 

Plaintiffs in a timely manner. 

52. On or about November 28, 2018, Defendants involuntarily terminated 

Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY'S and TORRACA-RJANO'S employment. 

53. On Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY'S and TORRACA-RJANO'S date of 

termination, however, Defendants failed to pay Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and 
. . 

TORRACA-RIANO all their unpaid wages immediately upon their termination. 

54. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and based thereon allege that 

Defendants similarly did not pay other similarly situated employees all wages due and 

payable in a timely manner. 

20 55. Based on the foregoing, Plaintiffs seeks the remedie$ set forth in this 

21 Complaint. 

22 REPRESENTATIVE ACTION (PAGA) CLAIMS 

23 56. _The duties and business activities of the Represented Employees were 

24 essentially the same as the duties and activities of Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and 

25 TORRACA-RIANO described above. 

26 57. This is a wage and hour representative action filed pursuant to PAGA,§§ 

27 2698, 2699 generally consists of the following group: 

28 All nonexempt persons Defendants employed in the State of 
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1 California from December 21, 2017 to the present. 

2 58. All members of the represented groups will be referred to as the 

3 "Represented Employees." 

4 59. The "Representative Period" means from December 21, 2017 to the 

5 present, the timeframe where the scope of statute allows Plaintiffs to recover wages 

6 and penalties. 

7 60. At all times during the Representative Period, all the Represented 

8 Employees were employed in the same or similar job as Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and 

9 TORRACA-RIANO and were paid in the same manner and under the same standard 

l 0 employment procedures and practices as the Plaintiff. 

11 61. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO further allege 

12 DEFENDANT EMPLOYER did not pay them and, on information and belief 

13 Represented Employees, all wages due at the time their employment ended with 

14 DEFENDANT EMPLOYER. 

15 62. On information and belief, current and former employees of 

16 DEFENDANT EMPLOYER were subject to wage and hour violations by 

17 · DEFENDANT EMPLOYER, including failing to pay for all wages due. 

18 63. California law provides that an employee may file an action against an 

19 employer to recover penalties for violations of the Labor Code and Wage Orders, 

20 provided the aggrieved employee files an action on behalf of him _or herself and 

21 · similarly situated current and former employees. 

22 64. At all material times, DEFENDANT EMPLOYER was and/or is 

23 Represented Employees' employer or persons acting on behalf of Represented · 

24 Employees' employer, within the meaning of California Labor Code·§ 5 58, who 

25 violated or caused to be violated, a section of Part 2, Chapter 1 of the California Labor 

26 Code or any provision regulating hours and days of work in any Order of the Industrial 

27 Welfare Commission and, as such, are subject to penalties for each underpaid 

28 employee as set for in Labor Code § 558. 
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65. As set forth in further detail below, because of the analysis and 

investigation of the Plaintiffs' claims, Plaintiffs' attorneys sent letters to the California 

Labor and Workforce Development Agency (hereinafter referred to as "L WDA") and 

to DEFENDANT EMPLOYER informing DEFENDANT EMPLOYER of their claims 

and their intent to pursue litigation. 

EXHAUSTION OF ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES 

66. As to penalty claims under the Labor Code Private Attorney General 

Act, on December 21, 2018, Plaintiffs began to exhaust his/her administrative 

remedies by sending correspondence to the L WDA and DEFENDANT EMPLOYER 

indicating that Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO are pursuing the 

claims alleged in this Complaint. 

67. By the time an amended Complaint is filed, the statutory period for 

Plaintiffs will have expired on the letter alleged above and the L WDA will likely not 

have served Plaintiffs with notice of intent to assume jurisdiction over the applicable 

penalty claims and did not provide notice as set forth in Labor Code § 2699 .3 

(a)(2)(A) within the statutory period. 

68. Therefore, Plaintiffs will have exhausted Plaintiffs' administrative 

remedies to enable Plaintiffs to seek the penalty claims sought in this Complaint. 

69. The Causes of Action alleged herein are appropriately suited for~ 

Representative Action under PAGA (Labor Code § 2698, et seq.) because: 

a. This action involves allegations of violations ~f 

provisions of the California Labor Code that 

provide for a civil penalty to be assessed and 

collected by the L WDA or any departments, 

divisions, commissions, boards, agencies or 

employees; 

b. Plaintiffs are "aggrieved employees" because 

Plaintiffs were employed by the alleged violator 
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and had one or more of the alleged violations 

committed against them; and 

c. Plaintiffs have satisfied the procedural 

requirements of Labor Code§ 2699.3, as set forth 

above. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

70. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO bring this action on 

behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated as a Class Act~on pursuant to § 

382 of the Code of Civil Procedure. 

71. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO seek to represent the 

classes and/or subclasses composed of and defined as follows: 

Labor Code Class: 

All current or former nonexempt employees who worked in 

the state of California from December 27, 2014 to the 

present for the Defendants who were issued wage and 

earning statements from ATC Healthcare Services, Inc. 

FCRAClass: 

All persons residing in the United States regarding whom 

Defendants procured or caused to be procured a consumer 

report for employment purposes during the period five 

years prior to the filing of the present action through the 

date of certification. 

72. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO also seek to represent 

the following subclasses composed of and defined as follows: 

Wage Statement Subclass: All Members of the Plaintiff Class who, 
during the applicable statute of limitations period, did not receive 
accurate itemized wage statements as required by Labor Code§ 226. 

Waiting Time Subclass: All Members of the Plaintiff Class who, 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

during the applicable limitations period, did not receive all wages due 
in a timely manner as required by Labor Code§§ 201-204. 

UCL Subclass: All Members of the Plaintiff Class, who, during the 
relevant period, Defendants owe restitution in the form of (1) 
unreimbursed expenses and/or (2) wages earned and unpaid because 
of Defend_ants' uniform pay policies and procedures. 

73. The above-mentioned class-members will collectively be referred to as 

7 "Class Members." 

8 74. Plaintiffs reserve the right under the California Rules of Court, to 

9 amend o_r modify the class description with greater specificity or further division into 

10 subclasses or limitation to particular issues. 

11 75. This action is brought and may properly be maintained.as a Class Action 
. . 

12 under the provisions of§ 3 82 of the Code of Civil Procedure because there is a 

13 well-defined community of interest in the litigation and the proposed Class is easily 

14 ascertainable. 

,15 A. Numerosity 

16 76. The potential members of the Class as defmed are so numerous or many, 

17 that j oinder of all the members of the Class is impracticable. 

18 77. While the precise number of Class Members has not been determined at 

19 this time, Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that 

20 DEFENDANT EMPLOYER currently employs, and during the relevant time periods 

21 employed, over 100 Class Members. 

22 78. Accounting for employee turnover during the relevant periods necessarily 

23 increases this number substantially. 

24 B. Commonality 

25 79. There are questions of law and fact common to the Class that 

26 predominate over any questions affecting only individual Class Members. 

27 80. Common questions of law and fact include, without limitation and 

28 
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subject to possible further amendment, the following: 

a. Whether the Defendant violated the FCRA by 

procuring consumer reports based on invalid 

authorizations; 

b. Whether Defendants' policy or practice of not·paying 

hourly employees all their wages due in their final 

paychecks immediately upon involuntary termination 

. or within 72 hours' notice of when its employees 

provided notice of their voluntary resignation, is 

unlawful under Labor Code§§ 201, 202 and/or 203; 

c. Whether Defendants violated Labor Code§§ 226 by 

not providing accurate paystubs; and 

d. Whether Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA­

RIANO and the members of the Class may re9over 

remedies pursuant to Business & Professions Code § § 

17200, et seq. 

C. Typicality 

81. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY'S and TORRACA-RIANO'S claims are typical 

of the claims of the Class because Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA:-RIANO 

and all members of the Class sustamed injuries and damages arising out of and caused 

by Defendants' common course of conduct and policies in violation of laws, 

regulations that have the force and effect of law and statutes as alleged herein. 

D. Adequacy of Representation 

82. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO are members of the 

Class, do not have any conflicts of interest with other Class Members, and will 

prosecute the case vigorously on behalf of the Class. 

83. Counsel representing Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO 

and the putative Class is competent and experienced in litigating employment class 
-14 .. 
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actions, including wage and overtime class actions. 

84. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO will fairly and 

adequately represent and protect the interests of the Class Members. 

E. Superiority of Class Action 

85. A class action is superior to other available means for the fair and 

efficiet?-t adjudication of this controversy because individualjoinder of all Class 

Members is not practicable, and questions of law and fact common to the Class 

predominate over any questions affecting only individual members of the Class. 

86. Each Class Member was damaged or suffered injury and may recover by 

reasons of Defendants' illegal policies and/or practices. 

87. Class Action treatment will allow those similarly situated persons to 

litigate their claims in the manner that is most efficient and economical for the parties 

and the judicial system. 

88. Plaintiffs are unaware of any difficult~es that are likely to encounter in 

the management of this action that would preclude maintenance ~s a Class Action. 

89. For the reasons alleged in this Complaint, this action should be certified · 

as a Class Action. 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

Individual and Class Claim for 

Violation of the Fair Credit Reporting Act 

(Obtaining Consumer Reports Without ;proper Disclosure) 

(Against All Defendants) 

90. Plaintiffs allege and incorporates by reference the allegations in the 

preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth herein. 

91. · Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(a)(3)(B), a consumer reporting agency 

may furnish a consumer report for employment purposes. 

92. Likewise, a consumer report may be used for the evaluation of"a 

consumer for employment, promotion, reassignment or retention of an employee." 15 
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93. The FCRA requires that, before procuring a consumer report on an 

individual for employment purposes, the employer must: (1) provide a clear and 

conspicuous disclosure to each applicant in.writing that a consumer report may be 

obtained for employment purposes; and (2) obtain the applicant's authorization in 

writing to obtain the report. 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A). 

94. Section 1681 b(b )(2)(A) further specifies that. the disclosure must be in 

writing "in a document that consists solely of the disclosure." 

95. Specifically, Section 1681b(b)(2)(A) provides, in relevant part: 

... a person may not procure a consumer report, or cause a consumer 
report to be procured, for employment purposes with respect to any 
consumer, unless--
a clear and conspicuous disclosure has been made in writing to the 
consumer at any time before the report is procured or cause to be 
procured, in a document that consists solely of the disclosure, that a 
consu.mer report may be obtained for employment purposes; and (ii) 
the consumer has authorized in writing (which authorization may be 
made on the document referred to in clause (i)) the procurement of 
the report by that person. · · 

15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A). 

96. During the Class Period, DEFENDANT EMPLOYER required Plaintiffs 

OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO and the FCRA Class Members to sign an 

authorization form as part of their job application with DEFENDANT EMPLOYER, 

which form purported to allow "ATC Healthcare Staffing" to procure consumer 

reports regarding the Plaintiffs. 

97. To the extent that ATC Healthcare Staffing (if such entity exists) is not 

the entity that procured consumer reports on Plaintiffs and FCRA Class Members, 

DEFENDANT EMPLOYERS failed to provide any disclosure at. all prior to 

procuring consumer reports for employment purposes, as required by the FCRA. 

98. Moreover, the form that was provided facially violates the FCRA in 

numerous respects. 
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99. Included in DEFENDANT EMPLOYER'S Notification and 

Authorization Form, i.e., Exhibit 1 are reruns of extraneous information, including 

but not limited to, a liability release and multiple state law ·admonitions. See Exhibit 

1. 

100. Defendants' inclusion of the aforementioned, among other extraneous 

information, in its Notification and Authorization Form executed by applicants · 

facially contravenes the requirements of 15 U.S.C. § 168lb(b)(2)(A) that the 

disclosure be: (1) "clear and consp~cuous"; and (2) appear "in a document that 

consists solely of the disclosure." 

101. As a matter of law, Defendant's inclusion of the aforementioned 

information invalidates the Notification and Authorization Forin for purposes of the 

FCRA. See Syed v. M-L LLC, 853 F.3d 492, * 10-11 (9th Cir. 2017) (holding an 

employer violates Section 168lb(b)(2)(A)(I)-(ii) when it requires an employee to 

sign a form containing a waiver of liability provision as part of a background 

investigation); Harris v. Home Depot U.S.A., Inc., 114 F. Supp. 3d 868, 870-71 (N.D. 

Cal. 2015) (release of liability improper); Feist v. Petco Animal Supplies, Inc., 218 F. 

Supp. 3d 1112 (S.D. Cal. 2016) (a summary of consumer rights in seven different 

states improper); Lagos v. The Leland Stanford Junior University, 2015 U.S. Dist. 

LEXIS 163119 (N.D. Cal. Dec. 4, 2015) (inclusion of seven state law notices and 

sentence stating "I also understand that nothing herein shall be construed as an offer 

of employment or contract for services" plausibly violated stand-alone.disclosure 

requirement); Woods v. CaremarkPHC, L.L.C., 2015 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 148051 

(W.D. Mo. 2015) ("The specific 'extraneous information' Plaintiff alleges Defendant 

included in its Authorization Form for Consumer Reports is: (1) an overbroad 

authorization for third parties to provide information to Defendant and its consumer 

reporting agency, (2) state-specific notices that did not apply to Plaintiff, and (3) that 

the form was part of a· five-page stapled packet of three documents. Where FCRA . 

allegations involve the inclusion of extraneous information beyond an authorization, 
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. 1 the complaint meets the 12(b )( 6) standard to state a claim for willful violation of the 

2 FCRA stand-alone requirement."); see also Letter from. William Ha)rnes, Attorney, 

3 Div. of Credit Practices, Fed Trade Comm'n to Richard W. Hauxwekk, CEO, 

4 Accufax Div. (June 12, 1998), 1998 W.L. 34323756 (F.T.C.) (noting that the 

5 inclusion of a waiver in a disclosure fonrt will violate the FCRA). 

6 102. The Notification and Authorization form is also illegal to the extent that 

7 it purports to authorize the procurement of any and all information regarding 

8 Plaintiffs and FCRA Class Members, whether legal or proper to do so. 

9 103. Defendants acted willfully by providing a facially invalid Notification 

10 and Authorization Form that was in direct violation of the clear and unambiguous 

11 requirements set forth in 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A). 

12 104. Defendants knew or acted with reckless disregard of its statutory duties 

13 and. the rights of applicants and employees, including Plaintiff and the Class, thus 

14 knowingly and/or recklessly disregarding its statutory duties. 

1 S 105. On information and belief, as well as Plaintiffs' investigation, 

16 Defendants' conduct was willful because: 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

a. Defendants required Plaintiff and the Class to execute the 

Notification and Authorization Form knowing that it was 

facially invalid in violation of the FCRA and Defendants' 

statutory duties; 

b. Defendants acted with reckless disregard of the FCRA 

requirements and Defendants' statutory duties when it 

required Plaintiff and the Class to execute the Notification 

and Authorization Form that was facially invalid and in 

violation of the clear and unambiguous requirements of the 

FCRA; 

c. Upon information and belief, Defendants were advised by 

skilled lawyers and other professional employees, and 
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advisors 1mowledgeable about the FCRA requirements; 

d. The plain language of the statute unambiguously 'indicates 

that inclusion of a liability release in a disclosure form 

violates the disclosure and authorization requirements; 

e. The FTC's express statements, pre-dating Defendants' 

conduct, state that it is a violation of 15 U.S.C. § 

1681b(b)(2)(A) to include a liability waiver in the FCRA 

disclosure form; and 

f. By adopting such a policy, Defendant voluntarily ran a risk 

of violating the law substantially greater that the risk 

associated with a reading that was merely careless. 

106. Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1681n(a)(l)(A), Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and 

TORRACA-RIANO and the FCRA Class may recover statutory damages due to 

Defendant's willful failure to comply with the requirements imposed by 15 U.S.C. § 

1681b(b)(2)(A) of an amount not less than $100 and not more than $1,000. 

107. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO and the Class seek the 

recovery of punitive damages for Defenda~ts' willful violations, in an amount as the 

Court may allow. 

108. · Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)(3) and§ 1681o(a)(2), Plaintiffs 

OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO and the Class seek the recovery costs of suit 

with reasonable attorneys' fees, as determined by the Court. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

Individual and Class Claim for 

Violation of the Fair Credit Reporting Act 

(Obtaining Consumer Reports Without Proper Authorization) 

109. Plaintiffs allege and incorporates by reference the allegations in the 

preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth herein. 

110. As alleged above, the form presented to Plaintiffs and FCRA Class 
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1 Members purports to authorize "ATC Healthcare Staffing" to perform a background 

2 investigation. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

i2 

13 

14 

15 

111. To the extent the foregoing entity (if it exists at all) is not the entity that 

procured consumer reports on Plaintiffs and Class Members, Def~ndants failed to 

obtain any authorization at all. 

112. Alternatively, because Defendants failed to make a clear and 

conspicuous disclosure that a consumer report may be procured in a document 

consisting solely of the disclosure, Defendants violated the FCRA by procuring 

consumer reports relating to Plaintiffs and other Class Members without proper 

authorization. See 15 U.S~C. § 168lb(b)(2)(A)(ii). 

113. The foregoing violations were willful because Defendants acted in 

de~iberate or reckless disregard of its obligations and the rights of Plaintiffs and other 

Class Members under 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(2)(A)(ii). 

114. Defendants' willful conduct is also evidenced by, among other things, 

the facts previously set forth. 

16 115. Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)(l)(A), Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and 

17 TORRACA-RIANO and the FCRA Class seek to recover statutory damages due to 

18 Defendants' willful failure to comply with the requirements imposed by 15 U.S.C. § 

19 · 1681b(b)(2)(A) of an amount not less than $100 and not inore than $1,000. 

20 116. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO and the Class seek the 

21 recovery of punitive damages for Defendants' willful violations, in an amount as the 

22 Court may allow. 

23 117. Pursuant to 15 U.S.C .. § 168ln(a)(3) and§ 1681o(a)(2), Plaintiffs 

24 OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO and the Class seek the recovery costs of suit 

25 with reasonable attorneys' fees, as determined by the Court. 

26 

27 

28 
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TIDRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

Individual Claim for Violation of the 

California Investigative Consumer Reporting 

Agencies Act (ICRAA) (Civ. Code, § 1786, et seq.) 

(Obtaining Consumer Reports Without Facially Valid Authorizations) 

(Against All Defendants) 

118. Plaintiffs allege and incorporates by reference the allegations in the 

preceding paragraphs as though fully set forth herein. 

119. Pursuant to California Civ. Code,§ 1786, et seq., a consumer reporting 

agency may furnish a consumer investigative report for employment purposes. 

120. The ICRAA requires that, before procuring a consumer report on an 

individual for employment purposes, the employer must comply with all the 

following: 
(A) The person procuring or causing the report to be made has a 
permissible purpose, as defined in Section 1786.12. 
(B) The person procuring or causing the report to be made 
provides a clear and conspicuous disclosure in writing to the 
consumer at any time before the report is procured or caused to be 
made in a document that consists solely of the disclosure, that: 

(i) An investigative consumer report may be obtained. 
(ii) The permissible purpose of the report is identified. 
(iii)The disclosure may include information on the consumer's 
character, general reputation, personal characteristics, and mode 
of living. · 
(iv)Identifies the name, address, and telephone number of the 
investigative consumer reporting agency conducting the 
investigation. · 
(v) Notifies the consumer in writing of the nature and scope of 
the investigation requested, including a summary of the 
provisions of Section 1786.22. 
(vi)Notifies the consumer of the Internet Web site address of the 
investigative consumer reporting agency identified in clause (iv), 
or, if the agency has no Internet Web site address, the telephone 
number of the agency, where the consumer may find information 
about the investigative reporting agency's privacy practices, 
including whether the consumer's personal information will be 
sent outside the United States or its territories and information 
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that complies with subdivision (d) of Section 1786.20. This 
clause shall become operative on January 1, 2012. 

(C) The consumer has· authorized in writing the procurement of 
the report. · 

(§ 1786.16, subd. (a)(2).) 

121. In addition, the person procuring or causing the report to be made must 

"certify to the investigative consumer reporting agency that the person has made the 

applicable disclosures to the consume! required by [section 1786.16, subdivision (a)] 

and that the person will comply with subdivision (b)." (§ 1786.16, subd. (a)(4).) 

122. Subdivision (b) of section 1786.16 also requires the person procuring or 

causing the report to be made to (1) provide the consumer a form with a box that can 

be checked ifthe consumer wishes to receive a copy of the report, and send a copy of 

the report to the consumer within three business days if the box i~ checked and (2) 

comply with section 1786.40 if the person procuring or causing the report to be made 

contemplates taking adverse action against the consumer.(§ 1786.16, subd. (b).) 

123. During the Class Period, Defendant ATC HEALTHCARE SERVICES, 

INC. required Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO and FCRA Class 

Members to sign a disclosure authorization forms as part of their job applications with 

Defendant ATC HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC., which forms purported to allow 

Defendant "ATC HEALTHCARE STAFFING," not Defendant ATC 

HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC., the alleged real employer, to procure a consumer 

report on the Plaintiff. See Exhibit 1. 

124. Under Civil Code § 1786.16, subd. (a) "Any person described in 

subdivision (d) of Section 1786.12 shall not procure or cause to be prepared an 

investigative consumer report unless ... The person procuring or causing the report to 

be made has a permissible purpose, as defined in Section 1786.12," yet Civil Code§ 

1786.12, in relevant part, provides "An investigative consumer reporting agency shall 

only furnish an investigative consumer report ... To a person that it has reason to 

believe: (1) Intends to use the information for employment purposes." 
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125. If Defendant ATC HEALTHCARE STAFFING was not Plaintiffs 

employer, it violated Civil Code § 1786.16 because it had no legal basis to procure a 

consumer report on the Plaintiff. 

126. In addition, DEFENDANT EMPLOYER'S Notifi.ca~on and 

Authorization Form, i.e., Exhibit 1: (1) was a purported authorization to procure a 

consumer report and/or investigative consumer report; (2) included a waiver of 

liability provision; (3) included a purported authorization to investigate ''personal 

history, educational background, military record, motor vehicle records, criminal 

records, and credit history ... ";and (4) included other extraneous language, including 

but not limited to a number of state law admonitions, such as Massachusetts, 

Minnesota, Oklahoma, none of which are applicable since Plaintiff was applying for 

work in California;".'' See Exhibit 1. 

127. Plaintiff maintains Defendants' inclusion of the aforementioned in its 

Notification and Authorization Form violates California law because it was not a 

"clear and conspicuous disclosure in writing to the consumer."(§ 1786.16(a)(2)(B).) 

See Exhibit 1. 

17 128. Based on the misconduct alleged in this Complaint, Defendants violated 

18 ICRAA. 

19 129 .. Defendants acted willfully by providing a facially invalid Notification 

20 and Authorization Form that was in direct violation of the clear and unambiguous 

21 requirements set forth in § 1786.16. 

22 130. Defendants knew or acted with reckless disregard of its statutory duties 

23 and the rights of applicants and employees, including Plaintiff and the Class, thus 

24 knowingly and/or recklessly disregarding its statutory duties. 

25 131. On information and belief, as well as Plaintiffs investigation, 

26 Defendants' conduct was willful. 

27 132. With respect to each of the aforementioned violations of the ICRAA 

28 provisions and pursuant to Civ. Code§ 1786.SO(a)(l), inthe event this case does not 
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proceed as a class action basis regarding the FCRA class claims, Plaintiffs 

OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO, not the Class, seek to recover statutory 

damages due to Defendants' failure to comply with the requirements imposed by § 

1786.16 of an amount not less than $10,000 or seek actual damages, if any, in an 

amount to be proven at trial, whichever is higher. 

133. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO are informed and 

believe, and based on such information and belief allege that Defendants' misconduct 

was reckless and/or willful and/or malicious and/or in conscious ~isregard of the 

rights and safety of the Plaintiff and whose recklessness and/or conscious disregard 

was reasonably foreseeable to cause injury to the Plaintiff, thereby warranting the 

assessment of punitive damages against these Defendants. 

134. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO seek the recovery 

costs of suit with reasonable attorneys' fees, as determined by the Court. 

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

Individual and Representative Claim for 

Failure to Pay Timely Earned Wages during Employment and 

Upon Separation of Employment in Violation of 

California Labor Code §§ 201, 202, 203, : 

204 and/or 204b, 218.5, and 218.6 

(Against all Defendant ATC HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC.) 

13 5. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference the foregoing allegations 

as though set forth herein. · 

136. Pursuant to Labor Code§ 201, "If an employer discharges an employee, 

the wages. earned and unpaid at the time of discharge are due and payable 

immediately." 

13 7. Pursuant to Labor Code § 202, "If an employee not having a written 

contract for a definite period quits his or her employment, his or her wages shall 

become due and payable not later than 72 hours thereafter, unless the employee has 
-.24-
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given 72 hours previous notice of his or her intention to quit, in which case the 

employee is entitled to his or her wages at the time of quitting." 

13 8. Labor Code § 203 provides, in pertinent part: "If an employer willfully 

fails to pay, without abatement or reduction, ... any wages of an employee who is 

discharged or who quits, the wages of the employee shall continue as a penalty from 

the due date thereof at the same rate until paid or until an action therefore is 

commenced; but the wages shall not continue for more than 30 days .... " 

139. Pursuant to'Labor Code§ 204, "all wages ... earned by any person in any 

employme:11t are due and payable twice during each calendar month, on days 
. ' 

designated in advance by the employer as the regular paydays." · · · 

140. Alternatively, pursuant to Labor Code§ 204b, employers must pay its 

employees on a weekly basis on a regular day detennined by the employer as the 

regular payday. 

141. Pursuant to Labor Code§§ 218.5 and 218.6, an actio~ maybe brought for 

the nonpayment of wages and fringe benefits. 

142. Based on the misconduct alleged in this Complaint, Plaintiffs were not 

properly paid pursuant to the requirements of Labor Code§§ 201, 202, and 204/204b 

and thereby seek all remedies available to them. 

143. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and.based thereon allege that 

Defendants willfully failed to pay Plaintiffs' wages pursuant to tlie requirements of 

Labor Code § § 201, 202, and 204/204b, after Plaintiffs' demand and, therefore, 

Plaintiffs may recover the associated unpaid wages and waiting time penalties. 

144. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and based thereon allege that 

Defendants did this with the intent to secure for himself, herself and itself a discount 

on its indebtedness and/or with intent to annoy harass, oppress, hinder, delay and/or 

defraud Plaintiffs. 

145. At all material times, DEFENDANT EMPLOYER and DOES 1 through 

50 were and/or are Represented Employees' employers or persons acting on behalf of 
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Represented Employees' employer, within the meaning of California Labor. Code § 

558, who violated or caused to be violated, a section of Part 2, Chapt.er 1 of the 

California Labor Code or any provision regulating hours and days of work in a:n:y 

Order of the Industrial Welfare Commission and, as such, are subject to penalties for 

each underpaid employee as set for in Labor Code § 558. 

146. In committing the violations of state law as herein alleged; Defendants 

have knowingly and willfully refused to perform their obligations to compensate 

Represented Employees for all wages earned and all hours worked. 

147. As a direct result, Represented Employees have suffered and continue to 

suffer, substantial losses related to the use and enjoyment of such. compensation, 

wages, lost interest on such monies and expenses and attorney's fees in seeking to 

compel Defendants to full perform their obligation under state law, all to their 

respective damage in amounts according to proof at trial and within the jurisdictional 

limitations of this Court. 

148. Labor Code§ 2699, et seq. imposes upon Defendants, and each of them, 

a penalty of one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each aggrieved employee per pay 

period for the initial violation and two hundred ($200.00) for each aggrieved 

employee per pay period for each subsequent violation in which DEFENDANT 

EMPLOYER violatedLabor Code§§ 201, 202, 203, and 204/20~b. The exact aniount 

of the applicable penalty is all in an amount to be shown according to proof at trial. 

149. Defendants deprived Plaintiffs of their rightfully earned wages as a direct 

and proximate result of Defendants' failure and refusal to pay said compensation and 

for the reasons alleged in this Complaint. 

150. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO and Class Members 

request the unpaid wages, waiting time penalties, interest, attorneys' fees, costs, 

damages, and other remedies in an amount to be proven at trial. 

151. Where any of the foregoing statutes do not provide for a private right of 

actions, Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO nevertheless assert 
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1 Defendants violated these provisions as part of their PAGA cause of action alleged 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

·8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

herein. 

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

Individual and Representative Claim for 

Violations of California Labor Code § 226 

(Against all Defendants) 

152. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate by reference the foregoing allegations 

as t11:ough set forth herein. 

i53. Plaintiffs allege that Labor Code§ 226 subdivision (a) requires~ in 

pertinent part, that every employer shall, "semimonthly or at the time of each payment 

of wages, shall furnish to his or her employee, either as a detachable part. of the check, 

draft, or voucher paying the employee's wages, or separately if wages are paid by 

personal check or cash, an accurate itemized statement in writing showing (1) gross 

wages earned, (2) total hours worked by the employee ... , (3) the number of piece-rate 

units earned and any applicable piece rate if the employee is paid on a piece-rate basis, 

( 4) all deductions, provided that all deductions made on written orders of the· employee 

may be aggregated and shown as one item, (5) net wages earned, (6) the inclusive dates 

of the period for which the employee is paid, (7) the name of the employee and only 

the last four digits of his or her social security number ... , (8) the name and address of 

the legal entity that is the employer ... , and (9) all applicable hourly rates in effect 

during the pay period and the corresponding number of hours worked at each hourly · 

rate by the employee ... " (Labor Code§ 226 subdivision (a).) 

154. Based on the foregoing allegations, during all times relevant to this action, 

Defendants did not provide accurate wage statements throughout the Class Period. 

155. Plaintiffs allege that on numerous occasions, an exact amount by which · 

will be proven at trial, Defendants violated various provisions of§ 226, including but 

not limited to subdivisions (a)(l), (a)(2), and a(5) by failing to provide Plaintiffs 

accurate itemized statement in writing accurately showing gross wages earned, net 
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wages earned, total hours worked by the employee; among other things. 

156. At all material times DEFENDANT EMPLOYER and DOES 1 through 

50 were and/or are Represented Employees' employers or persons acting on behalf of 

Represented Employees' employer, within the meaning of California Labor Code§ 

558, who violated or caused to be violated, a section of Part 2, Chapter 1 of the 

California Labor Code or any provision regulating business hours and days of work in 

any Order of the Industrial Welfare Commission and, as such, are subject to penalties 

for each underpaid employee as set forth in Labor Code§ 558. 

157. In committing the violations of state law as herein alleged, Defendants 

have knowingly and willfully refused to perform their obligations to compensate 

Represented Employees for all wages earned and all hours worke<;l. 

158. As a direct result, Represented Employees have suffered and continue to 

suffer, substantial losses related to the use and enjoyment of such compensation, 

wages, lost interest on such monies and expenses and attorney's fees in seeking to 

compel Defendants to fully perform their obligations under state law, all to their 

respective damage in amounts according to proof at trial and within the jurisdictional 

limitations of this Court. 

159. Labor Code § 2699, et seq. imposes upon Defendants, and each of them, a 

penalty of one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each aggrieved employee per pay period 

for the initial violation and two hundred ($200.00) for each aggrieved employee per 

pay period for each subsequent violation in whi~h DEFENDANT EMPLOYER 

violated Labor Code§ 226, the exact amount of the applicable penalty is all in an 

amount to be shown according to proof at trial. 

160. For Defendants' misconduct as alleged in this Complaint, Plaintiffs seek 

25 damages, penalties, costs, and attorneys' fees pursuant to Labor Code§§ 226, 226.3, 

26 and 226.6 in an amount to be proven at trial. 

27 161. For Defendants' misconduct as alleged herein, Plaintiffs seek injunctive 

28 relief and attorneys' fees and costs pursuant to § 226 in an amount tO be proven at trial. 
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162; Where any of the foregoing statutes do not provide for a private right of 

actions, Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO nevertheless assert 

Defendants violated these provisions as part of their PAGA caus~ of action alleged 

herein. 

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

Individual and Representative Claim for PAGA 

Penalties and Wage Under California Labor Code 

§§ 2698, 2699, et seq. for Violations of California Labor Code 

§§ 201, 202, 203, 204 and/or 204b, 218.5, 218.6, 226, 226.3, and 226.6. 

(Against all Defendants) 

163. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporates by reference the foregoing 

allegations as though set forth herein . 

164. Pursuant to law, written notice was provided to the LWDA and 

Defendants of the specific violations of the California Labor Code Defendants have 

violated and continue to violate. 

165. Pursuant to Labor Code§ 2699.3, no response will likely be received 

from the LWDA within 60 days of the postmark date of the above-alleged letter. 

166. Plaintiffs, therefore, will have exhausted all administrative procedures 

required of them under Labor Code§§ 2698, 2699, and 2699.3, and, as a result, are 

justified as a matter of right in bringing forward this cause of action and are entitled to 

pursue penalties in a representative action for Defendants' violations of the Labor 

22 Code. 

23 167. Pursuant to Labor Code § 2699, any provision of the L~bor Code that 

24 provides for a civil penalty to be assessed and collected by the L WDA or any of its 

25 departments, divisions, commissions, boards, agencies or employees for violation of 

26 the code may, as an alternative, be recovered through a civil action brought by an 

27 aggrieved employee on behalf of himself or herself and other current or former· 

28 employees pursuant to the procedures specified in Labor Code§ 26~9.3. 
-29-
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168. Plaintiff is an "aggrieved employee" because Plaintiff was employed by 

the alleged violator and had one or more of the alleged violations committed against 

Plaintiff, and therefore is properly suited to represent the interests of other current and 

former Represented Employees. 

169. Because of the acts alleged above, Plamtiffs seek penalties under Labor 

Code§§ 2698 and 2699 because of Defendants' violation of numerous provisions of 

the California Labor Code as alleged in this Complaint. 

170. Labor Code§ 2699, et seq. imposes upon Defendants, and each of them, 

penalties for violating Labor Code§§ 201, 202, 203, 204 and/or 204b, 218.5, 218.6, 

226, 226.3, and 226.6. 

171. Labor Code§ 558 establishes a civil penalty as follows: Any employer 

or other person acting on behalf of an employer who viola~es, or causes to be violated, 

a section of this chapter or any provision regulating hours and days of work in any 

order of the Industrial Welfare Commission (including the "Hours and Days of Work" 

section of the Wage Order) shall be subject to a civil penalty of (1) for any initial 

violation, .fifty dollars ($50) for each underpaid employee for each pay period for 

which the employee was underpaid in addition to an amount sufficient to recover 

underpaid wages; (2) for each subsequent violation, one hundred dollars ($100) for 

each underpaid employee for each pay period for which the employee was underpaid 

in addition to an amount sufficient to recover underpaid wages; and (3) wages 

recovered pursuant to this section shall be paid to the affected employee. 

172. Plaintiffs seek penalties for Defendants' conduct as alleged herein as 

permitted by law. 

173. Specifically, Plaintiffs seeks penalties under Labor Code§ 2699, for the 

following in addition to those Code provisions mentioned in this Cause of Action: 

a. For violations of Labor Code§§ 201, 202, 203, 

and 204/204b for failing to pay Plaintiff and . 

Represented Employees in a timely manner; and 
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b. For the violation of Labor Code§§ 226 and 226.3, 

for failing to provide Plaintiff and Represented 

Employees accurate wage statements. 

174. Pursuant to Labor Code§ 2698, et seq., Plaintiffs seek to recover 

attorney's fees, costs, civil penalties, and wages on behalf of Plaintiff and other 

current and former Represented Employees as alleged here.in in an amount to be 

shown acc9rding to proof at trial and within the jurisdictional limits of this Court. 

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

Individual Claim for Remedies for Violations 

of the California Unfair Business 

Practices Code §§ 17200, .et seq. 

(Against all Defendants) 

17 5. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporates by reference the foregoing 

allegations as though set forth herein. 

176. Defendants, and each of them, are "persons" as defined under Business 

and Professions Code § 17021. 

177. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and based thereon allege that 

Defendants committed the unfair business practices, as defmed by Cal. Bus. & Prof. 

Code§ 17200, et seq., by violating the laws alleged to have been violated in this 

Complaint and which allegations are incorporated herein by reference. · 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

178. Defendants' conduct, as alleged above, constitutes unlawful, unfair, and 

fraudulent activity prohibited by Business and Professions Code § § 17200, et seq. 

179. The unlawful and unfair business practices conducted by Defendants,· 

and each of them, are ongoing and present a threat and likelihooq of continuing 

against Plaintiffs and, accordingly, Plaintiff seeks injunctive relief where appropriate. 

180. Plaintiffs has suffered injury in fact and lost money or property because 

27 of the aforementioned unfair competition. 

28 181. Because of their improper acts, Defendants, and each of them, have 
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reaped and continue to reap unfair benefits and illegal profits at the exp~nse of 

Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO and other employees and former 

employees of Defendants, and each of them. 

182. Defendants, and each of them, should be enjoined from this activity and 

made to disgorge these ill-gotten gains and restore to Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and 

TORRACA-RIANO and the Class the wrongfully withheld wages and/or penalties, 

pursuant to Business and Professions Code § § 17202 and/or 17203. 

183. Plaintiffs OLSHANSKYand TORRACA-RIANO and the Class have 

also incurred and continue to incur attorneys' fees and legal expenses in an amount 

according to proof at the time of trial and for which they seek compensation pursuant 

to law including but not limited to Code of Civil Procedure§ 1021.5. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs OLSHANSKYand TORRACA-RIANO, on behalf 

of the Class, pray for an order for relief as follows: 

1. An order that this action may proceed and be maintained as a class 

action; 

2. For appointment of the Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-

RIANO as the representatives of the Class; 

3. For appointment of counsel for Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and 

TORRACA-RIANO as Class Counsel; 

· 4. That Defendants be found liable to Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and 

TORRACA-RIANO and the Class; 

5. For a declaration that Defendants violated the rights of Plaintiffs 

OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO and the Cfass under the FCRA and any other 

applicable law alleged in this Complaint; · 

6. Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1681n(a)(l)(A), an award of statutory damages 

to Plaintiff and the Class in an amount equal to $1,000 for Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY 

and TORRACA-RIANO and each member of the Class for Defendant's willful 
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7. In the event this case does not proceed on a FCRA class action basis, 

pursuant to Civ. Code § 1786.50, an award of statutory damages to Plaintiffs. 

OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RJANO in the amount of$10,000 each, or in the 

alternative actual damages in an amount according to proof; 

8. For an award of punitive damages to Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and 

TORRACA-RIANO and the members of the Class in an amount to be determined by 

the Court; 

9. For costs of suit and expenses incurred herein, including reasonable 

attorneys' fees and costs allowed under relevant provision of law including, but not 

limited to, those allowed under 15 U.S.C. §168ln(a)(3), 15 U.S.C. §1681o(a)(2), Civ. 

Code § 1786.50, and/or other applicable provisions oflaw; 

10. That Defendants, and each of them, be ordered and enjoined to pay 

restitution to Plaintiff and/or the Class and/or Represented Employees pursuant to · 

Business and Professions Code § § 17200-05; 

11. That Defendants, and each of them, be required to issue to Plaintiff 

and/or the Class and/or Represented Employees accurate wage arid earning 

statements; 

12. For disgorgement through restitution of all ill-gotten and/or ill-gained 

profits, including unpaid wages and/or penalties to Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and 

TORRACA-RI.ANO and/or the Class and/or Represented Employees, resulting from 

Defendants' unfair business practices pursuant to Business and Professions Code § § 

23 1 7200-05; 

24 13. For an order by the Court requiring Defendants, and each of them, to 

25 show cause, if any they have, as to why to Plaintiff and/or the Class and/or 

26 Represented Employees should not have been issued itemized wage statements as 
. . 

27 required by § 226 of the Labor Code and why Defendants should not be required to 

28 pay Plaintiff minimum wages and overtime compensation under applicable state law; 
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1 14. For all remedies available to Plaintiffs OLSHANSKYand TORRACA-

2 RIANO under the applicable provisions of the Labor Code via PAGA Labor Code.§ 

3 2698, et seq. including an award of attorneys' fees, costs, interest, liquidated 

4 damages, damages, penalties and waiting time penalties according to proof to the 

5 extent permitted by law; 

6 15. For maximum civil penalties available under the Labor Code and 

7 applicable Wage Order as described more particularly in this Complaint, 

8 representative PAGA claims including the payment of wages as set forth in Labor 

9 Code§ 558; 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

. . 

16. That Defendants, and each of them, be required to issue to Plaintiffs 

OLS.HANSKY and TORRACA-RIANO and/or the Class and/or Represented 

Employees accurate wage and earning statements; 

17. For Labor Code § 203 penalties in an amount to be proven at trial; 

18. For special and general damages; 

19. That Plaintiffs OLSHANSKY and TORRACA-RJANO and/or the Class 

and/or Represented Employees be awarded reasonable attorneys' fees where available 

by law, including but not limited to pursuant to Labor Code§§ 2698, et seq., Code of 

Civil Procedure§ 1021.5, and/or other applicable laws; and 

19 20. For any other relief the Court may deem just, proper and equitable in the 

20 circumstances. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

· Dated: December 27, 2018 Law Offices of 
Thomas D. Rutledge 

By: ls/Thomas D. Rutledge 
ls/Thomas D. Rutledge 
Attorneys for Plaintiffs 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiffs hereby demand a jury trial of this matter. 
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1 Dated: December 27, 2018 
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Law Offices of 
Thomas D. Rutledge 

By: ls/Thomas D. Rutledge 
Thomas D. Rutledge (SBN 200497) 
Attorneys for Plaintiffs 
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Notification and Authorization to Conduct Employment Background Investigation 

I hereby aut)lorize !\TC Healthcare Staft11tg and ~hoice of reporting company to ascertain infonnation regarding my background to detennine any and 
all information of concern to my record, whether same is of record or not, and I release employers and persons named in my application from all liability for 
any damages on account of his/her furnishing said information. I understand that this form indicates that a background search will be conducted and that this 
is my notification of that intent. I understand that the purpose of this background investigation is to determine my suitability for employment and may elicit 
information on my character, general reputation, personal charalteristics and mode of living. Additionally, you are hereby auflorized .to make any 
investigation of my personal history, educational background, military record, motor vehicle records, criminal records, .and crldit history through an 
investigative or credit agency or bureau of your choice. I authorize the release of this information by the appropriate agencies to the investigating service. I 
understand that my consent will apply throughout .my employment, unless I revoke or cancel my consent by sending a signed letter or statement to the 
Company at any time, stating that I revoke my consent and no lclger allow the Company to obtain consumer or investigative constmer reports about me. 

PLEASE PRINT CLEARLY 

FULL NAME; Michael Olshansky 

OTHER NAMES USED/MAIDEN NAME/DATES: 

Redacted Redacted 

LIST ALL ADDRESSES FOR PAST 7 YEARS: 

EMAIL ADDRESS: ___ R_e_da_c_t_e_d ____ _ 

SOCIAL SECURITY #_R_E_D_A_C_T_E_D_______ DATE OFBIRTH:R __ E_D_A_c_r_E_D ______ _ 

DRNER'S LICENSE # __ R_e_d_a_c_te_d_. ___________ STATE IS~UED; _P_A ______ _ 

***MAY WE CONTACT YOUR CURRENT EMPLOYER? 

*** HA VE YOU EVER BEEN CONVICTED OF A CRIME? 

If yes, please explain: 

YES~ Noil 
YEs__D__ NoH 

Notice to California Applicants • You may omit minor traffic offenses, any convictions which have been sealed, expunged or statutorily eradicated, 
convictions more than two years old for the following marijuana related offenses: HS11357b&c, HS11360c, HS11364, HS11365, HS11550, and misdemeanors 
for which probation was completed and the case was judicially dismissed. · 

Notice to Massachusetts Applicants: You may omit a first conviction for any of the following misdetieanors: drunkenness, simple assault, speeding, minor 
traffic violations, affray, or disturbance of the peace, or any conviction of a misdemeanor where the date of such conviction or the completion of any period of 
incarceration resulting there from, whichever date is later, occurred five or more years prior to the date of this application for employment, unless you have been. 
convicted ofany offense within five years immediately preceding the date of this application for employment. 
Note: No applicant will be denied employment solely on the grounds of conviction of a crime. The nature of the offense, the date of the offense, the 
surrounding circums e relevance of the offens.e to the position will be considered. 

SIGNATURE: DATE: Nov 18, 2018 

Callfor11la Applicants: Under Section 1786.22 of the California Civil Code, you have the right to request from Justifacts (5250 Logan Ferry Rd, Murrysville PA 15626- 800-356-6885, 
www.justifacts.com). upon proper identification, the nature and substance of all fnfonnation in its files on you, including the sources ofinfortation, and the recipients ofariy roports on you 
to whom Justitacts l1as previously furnished within the tl1ree-year period preceding your request. Files maintained on a consumer shall be made available tor the consumer's visual inspection, 
as follows: (I) In-person, if he appears in person and furnishes proper identification. A copy of his file shall also be available to the consumer for a fee riot to exceed the actual costs of 
duplication services provided. (2) By certified mail, ifhe makes a written request, with proper identification, for copies to be sent to a specified addressee. (3) A summary of all information 
contained in files on· a consumer and required to be provided by Section 1786.10 shall be provided by telephone, if the consumer bas made a written request, with proper identification for 
telephone disclosure, and ihe toll charge, if any, for the telellhone call is prepaid by or charged directly to the consumer. 

ncallfor.nla, Minnesota & Okla.home Applicants Only: Please check this box If you would like a copy or the background check mall el to you. Minnesota and Oklahoma applicants 
Lwm'receive a copy direct fTom Justifacts or its designee. California applicants may receive a copy from either the prospective employer or Justifacts. 

NOTICE: Under federal law, you have the right to request disclosure of the nature and scope of our investigation by providing us with a written request within 60 days of our background 
investi11ation. 
Subscriber certifies that consumer credit infonnation, consumer reports, as defined by the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. 1681 at seq. ("FCRA"), will be ordered 
only when intended to be used as a factor in establishing a consumer's eligibility for employment and that consumer credit information will be used for no other 
purposes. It is recognized and understood that the FCRA provides that anyone ''who knowingly and willfully obtains information on a consumer from a consumer 
reporting agency" (such as Justifacts) "under false pretenses shall be fined not more than $2,500 or imprisoned not more than two years or both." 
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SEYFARTH SHAW LLP 
Laura Wilson Shelby (SBN 151870) 
lshelby@seyfarth.corn 
Mason R. Winters (SBN 273639) 
mwinters@seyfarth.corn 
2029 Century Park East, Suite 3500 
Los Angeles, California 90067-3021 
Telephone: (310) 277-7200 
Facsimile: (310) 201-5219 

Attorneys for Defendants 
ATC Healthcare, Inc., ATC Healthcare Services, 
LLC (erroneously sued as ATC Healthcare 
Services, Inc. and ATC Healthcare Staffing), and 
ATC West Staffing, Inc. 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

Case No. 

MASTER PROOF OF SERVICE 

-San Diego County Superior Court Case 
.To. 37-2018-000653377-CU-0E-CTL] 

Trial Date: None Set 
Complaint Filed: December 27, 2018 

TONI TORRACA-RIANO and MICHAEL 
OLSHANSKY, individually, on behalf of 
themselves and others similarly situated, 

Plaintiffs, 

v. 

ATC HEALTHCARE SERVICES, INC., a 
Georgia corporation; ATC 
HEALTHCARE, INC., a Delaware 
corporation; ATC HEALTHCARE 
SERVICES, LLC, a Georgia limited 
liability company; ATC HEALTHCARE 
STAFFING, an unknown entity; ATC 
WEST STAFFING, INC., a California 
corporation; and DOES 1 through 50 
inclusive, 

Defendants. 

MASTER PROOF OF SERVICE 
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Executed on February 8, 2019, at Los e es, Calif9rni 

JAMES A LERA 

MASTER PROOF OF SERVICE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
SS. 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

I am employed in the County of Los Angeles, State of California. I am over the 
age of 18 and not a party to the within action; my business address is: 2029 Century Park 
East, Suite 3500, Los Angeles, California 90067. 

On February 8, 2019, I served the within document(s): 

SEE ATTACHED LIST OF DOCUMENTS SERVED  

(BY MAIL) The envelope was mailed with postage thereon fully prepaid. As 
follows: I am "readily familiar" with the firm's practice of collection and 
processing correspondence for mailing. Under that practice it would be 
deposited with U.S. postal service on that same day with postage thereon fully 
prepaid at Los Angeles, California in the ordinary course of business. I am 
aware that on motion of the party served, service is presumed invalid if postal 
cancellation date or postage meter date is more than one day after date of deposit 
for mailing in affidavit. 

(BY HAND DELIVERY) I delivered the within documents to Nationwide 
❑ Legal, Inc. for delivery to the person(s) at the address(es) set forth below with 

instructions that such envelope be delivered personally on , 2019. 

(BY OVERNIGHT MAIL) I am readily familiar with the firm's practice of 
❑ collection and processing correspondence for mailing with GSO/FedEx. Under 

that practice it would be deposited with GSO/FedEx on that same day thereon 
fully prepaid at Los Angeles, California in the ordinary course of business. The 
envelope was sealed and placed for collection and mailing on that date following 
ordinary business practices. 

❑ Electronically by using the Court's CM/ECF System 

Thomas D. Rutledge 
Attorney at Law 
500 West Harbor Drive, Suite 1113 
San Diego, CA 92101 
Telephone: (619) 886-7224 
Facsimile: (619) 259-5455 

[Attorneys for Plaintiffs Toni Torraca- 
Riano and Michael Olshansky, et al.] 

I declare that I am employed in the office of a member of the bar of this court at 
whose direction the service was made. 

MASTER PROOF OF SERVICE 
54869486v.1 
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LIST OF DOCUMENTS SERVED  

1. CIVIL COVER SHEET 

2. DEFENDANTS' NOTICE OF REMOVAL OF CIVIL ACTION TO THE 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

3. NOTICE OF PARTY WITH FINANCIAL INTEREST [Southern District 
Civil Rule 40.2] 

4. DEFENDANTS' RULE 7.1 CORPORATE DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

5. DECLARATION OF MASON R. WINTERS IN SUPPORT OF 
DEFENDANTS' NOTICE OF REMOVAL 

6. MASTER PROOF OF SERVICE 

MASTER PROOF OF SERVICE 
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I. (a) PLAINTIFFS 

Toni Torraca-Riano and Michael Olshanksy 

(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES) 

(C) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) 
Thomas D. Rutledge (SBN 200497) 
500 West Harbor Drive, Suite 1113, 
San Diego, CA 92101 
Telephone: (619) 886-7224 

DEFENDANTS 
ATC Healthcare, Inc., ATC Healthcare Servs, LLC (erroneously sued 
as ATC Healthcare Servs, Inc., and ATC Healthcare Staffing), et al. 

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant 
(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY) 

NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF 
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED. 

Attorneys (If Known) 
SEYFARTH SHAW LLP 
Laura Wilson Shelby (SBN 151870); Mason R. Winters (273639) 
2029 Century Park East, Suite 3500, Los Angeles, CA 90067 
Telephone: (310) 277-7200; Ishelby@seyfarth.com, mwinters@seyfarth.com  

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff Riverside 

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an "X" in One Box Only) 

0 1 U.S. Government ill 3 Federal Question 
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) 

7 2 U.S. Government 0 4 Diversity 
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III) 

III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an "X" in One Box for Plaintiff 
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant) 

PTF DEF PTF DEF 
Citizen of This State 0 1 0 1 Incorporated or Principal Place 0 4 0 4 

of Business In This State 
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